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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the 32™ Annual Report of your
Company along with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended 31" March, 2024. The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS).

FIRANCIAL RESULTS:

| Rx im Lac)
Profit Before Tasation {excludmg Other Comprehensive Incomea) 570400
Less: Proision for Gurrent Tax {Met of charge in 01} 129905
Less: Income Tax relating to earlier years |5.65)
Less: Deferred Tax 86,84
Prafit After Taxation {excluding Other Comprehensive Income) 432878
Add: Other Comprehensiee Income {net of tam) |0.48)
fickd : Transfer from Eguity Instrument throwugh 001 on realization 2E80.50
Acki | Balamee of Profit fraom Previous year [sacluding Other Comprehensive 42356.30
Incorme)
Total 45309, 90
APPROPRIATIONS :
Tranafer to Statutery Reserve (as per AB Guldelines) 864,75
Balance Carried 1o Balance Sheat [eaciuding Othar Comprahersive Incamea) ABM5. 15
Total 45309, 90

WORKING RESULTS AND STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

Total income during the year under review amounted to %6,153.95 Lac as against
%4,579.05 Lac in the preceding year. Profit before and after tax amounted to X5,704.00
Lac and %4,323.76 Lac respectively as against %4,199.41 Lac and 3,066.57 Lac
respectively inthe previous year excluding Other Comprehensive Income.

The Company continues to remain registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company
(NBFC) with the Reserve Bank of India.

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the year till the
date of this report, which affect the financial position of the Company.

DIVIDEND

To further strengthen the financial position of the Company and to conserve resources,
the Board has decided to retain the earnings and does not propose any dividend.
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SHARE CAPITAL

The Company has only one class of shares — equity shares of par value X10/- each. The
Authorised Share Capital of the Company stands at X 20 Crores divided into 2 Crore
equity shares of X10/- each. The paid-up equity share capital of the Company stood at
%1325.94 Lacs as at 31" March, 2024. During the year, the Company has not issued any
shares.

TRANSFERTO RESERVE FUND

Pursuant to section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, non-banking financial
companies (NBFCs) are required to transfer a sum not less than 20% of their net profit
every year to reserve fund before declaration of any dividend. Accordingly, the Board
proposes to transfer 864.75 Lacs to Reserve Fund and the balance profit is retained in
the Profitand Loss Account.

PUBLICDEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public during the year nor does it
hold any public deposit as at the end of the financial year.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES ORINVESTMENTS

The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered under Chapter
I11B of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934), is exempt from complying with the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to disclosures of
Investments made and of loans and guarantees given or provided.

SUBSIDIARY /JOINT VENTURES / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary/Joint Venture / Associate Company, hence
the information pertaining to the same is notapplicable.

DEMATERIALISATON OF COMPANY'S SHARES AND REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER
AGENT (RTA)

The Company has made arrangements with National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) to offer facility of dematerialisation of securities to its shareholders. The ISIN
allotted by the said depository to the Company is — INEO1US01017. Members holding
shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holding to
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dematerialized form to eliminate risks associated with physical shares and for ease of
portfolio management and transaction of transfer. Members may contact their
Depository Participant for assistance in this regard.

Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. is acting as Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) of the
Company for both electronic and physical form of shareholdings including transmission
and transposition. All communications relating to shares should be addressed to the RTA
at 23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5" Floor, Kolkata — 700 001. Email ID of the RTA is
mdpldc@yahoo.com

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had entered into contracts / arrangements / transactions
with related parties, attracting the requirement of disclosure in this report as per
provisions of Section 188 of the Act i.e. for remuneration paid to the key managerial
personnel, sitting fees paid to the directors, renewal of leave and license agreement and
rent paid to the enterprise having significant influence over this Company for office space
which are in the ordinary course of business and are suitably disclosed in Note No.30 of
the Financial Statements forming part of this Annual Report pursuant to Ind AS 24. The
required disclosure of such transactions under section 134(3) (h) of the Act is enclosed in
form AOC-2 forming part of this Report.

INTERNAL FINANCIALCONTROL

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with
its size, scale, nature of business and operations with reference to its financial
statements. The Company has appointed internal auditors who review the internal
financial control system. These have been designed to provide reasonable assurance
about recording and providing reliable financial information, ensuring integrity in
conducting business, accuracy and completeness in maintaining accounting records
and prevention and detection of frauds and errors.

RISKMANAGEMENT

The main identified risks at the Company are Commercial Risks, Financial Risks,
Operational Risks and Legal & Regulatory Risks. The Company has Risk Management
Committee as required by the Reserve Bank of India comprising of three members,
namely Shri Ashok Bhandari (Chairman), Shri Ravi Goenka (Director) and Shri K. K.
Thakur (CFO), who has been assigned the task of management and mitigation of risk
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tothe Company's operations. The Committee met four times during the year.
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company's
Articles of Association, Shri Ashok Bhandari (DIN: 00012210) Director of the
Company retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

The Board recommends the re-appointment and accordingly resolution seeking
approval of the members for the re-appointment has been included in the Notice of
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Board has appointed Shri Ashok Dhirajlal Kanania (DIN:00738955), as an
Independent Director on 28" June, 2024 for a consecutive period of five years not
liable to retire by rotation subject to member's approval at the ensuring Annual
General Meeting. The Board recommends his appointment and accordingly
resolution seeking approval of the members for his appointment has been included
in the Notice conveying the Annual General Meeting of the Company along with his
profile.

The Board has approved re-appointment of Shri Ravi Goenka (DIN: 01393012), as an
Independent Director for his second term of 5(Five) consecutive years w.e.f 30" April,
2024, not liable to retire by rotation, subject to members' approval at the ensuing
AGM.

Shri S. K. Mukherjee continues to be the Independent Director of the Company
appointed for a second term of five years from the date of his appointment, not liable
to retire by rotation. Shri Mukherjee's second term of five years is due to expire on
10" September, 2024.

The Independent Directors have appropriate skill, knowledge and experience in the
business carried on by the Company. The Company has received declarations from all
the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the criteria of Independence as
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Board hereby confirms that it is
satisfied with such declarations.

Shri K.K. Thakur is the Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. Shri K.K.
Thakur was re-appointed as Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company by
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the members at the 30" Annual General Meeting for a period of 5 (five) years
commencing from 1% September, 2022.

Shri Sumit Jain, a Fellow Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India,
having membership number 9010, is the Company Secretary of your Company. Shri
SumitJainis also the Compliance Officer of the Company.

BOARD EVALUATION

The performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Individual Directors was
conducted after seeking inputs from all directors on the basis of criteria such as the
composition and structure, effectiveness of processes, functioning etc.

The Independent Directors held a separate meeting, which reviewed the performance of
non-independent directors and the Board as a whole, took into account the views of non-
executive directors and to assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information
between the management and the Board. The Independent Directors were satisfied with the
performance of the Board as a whole and timeliness of flow of information.

Some of the key criteria for performance evaluation are as follows:-
Performance evaluation of Directors:

° Attendance at Board or Committee meetings.
° Contribution at Board or Committee meetings.
° Guidance / support to management outside the Board / Committee meetings.

Performance evaluation of Board and Committees:

° Degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities
° Board structure and composition
° Establishment and delineation of responsibilities to Committees
° Effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning
° Board culture and dynamics
° Quality of relationship between Board and Management
° Efficacy of communication with shareholders.
AUDITORS:

Statutory Auditors

M/s S Jaykishan, Chartered Accountants having Firm Registration No. 309005E, who are
Statutory Auditors of the Company, were appointed by the Company to hold office until
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the conclusion of the 32™ Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2024 and are
duetovacate their office as Auditors as aforesaid.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 139 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the relevant Rules of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 as amended
and pursuant to the guidelines of Reserve Bank of India, M/s. R. Kothari & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants having Firm Registration No. 307069E / E300266 have offered
their candidature for appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 3
(three) consecutive years from the conclusion of the 32™ Annual General Meeting till the
35" Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2027.

The Company has received certificate from M/s. R. Kothari & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants, to the effect that their appointment, if made, would be in accordance with
the provisions of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not
disqualified from being appointed as Statutory Auditors and meet the eligibility criteria
laid down by RBI. The Board at the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
recommends their appointment.

Members are required to approve appointment of M/s. R. Kothari & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants as Statutory Auditors as aforesaid and fix their remuneration for the
financial year ending 31" March, 2025.

The audit report by M/s S Jaykishan, for the financial year 2023-24 is unmodified, i.e., it
does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer and
hence does not require any explanation or clarification by the Board.

Cost Audit

Pursuant to provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 cost audit as specified
by the Central Governmentis not applicable to the Company.

Tax Auditor

The Board of Directors had appointed M/s S Jaykishan, Chartered Accountants, to carry
out the Tax Audit for the Assessment Year 2024-25.

Internal Auditor

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee had appointed
M/s D. K. Parmanandka & Co., Chartered Accountants, having Firm Registration Number:
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322388E to carry out the Internal Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24.
REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the reporting period, the statutory auditors had not reported to the audit
committee/Board, under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any instance of
fraud committed against the Company by its officers or employees, and hence the
requirement to mention the same in this reportis not applicable.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS:

Meetings of Board and its Committees are held as per statutory requirements and as per
business needs. Due to business exigencies, the Board and Committees have also been
approving proposals by circulation from time to time.

BOARD MEETING

During the year, 4 (four) Board Meetings and one meeting of the Independent Directors
were held. The intervening gap between the meetings of the Board was within the period
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has formed following Committees besides Risk Management Committee in
compliance of the provisions of the Act and the Reserve Bank of India directives as
applicable to NBFC with relevant policy frame work for the same and guidelines for their
functioning.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of two Independent Directors namely, Shri Ravi Goenka
(Chairman), Shri Sudip Kumar Mukherjee and a Non Independent non-executive Director
Shri Ashok Bhandari. Shri Sumit Jain acts as Secretary to the Committee. The Committee
met three times during the year.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Company has a Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprising of two independent

directors and one non-independent director namely, Shri Ravi Goenka (Chairman), Shri Sudip
Kumar Mukherjee and one Non-independent non-executive Director namely Shri Ashok
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Bhandari. The Committee met once during the year.
FINANCE AND ASSETS LIABILITY SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE (ALCO)

The Committee as constituted by the Board comprises Non- Executive Directors namely Shri
Ashok Bhandari (Chairman) and Shri Gourav Periwal as other member of the Committee. The
Committee met four times during the year.

INVESTMENT / CREDIT COMMITTEE

The Committee as constituted by the Board comprises two members namely Shri Ashok
Bhandari (Chairman) and Shri Ravi Goenka as other member of the Committee. The
Committee met four times during the year.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of Directors comprises of two independent directors
namely, Shri Ravi Goenka (Chairman), Shri Sudip Kumar Mukherjee and one non-
independent director namely Shri Gaurav Periwal and Shri Krishna Kumar Thakur, Manager
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company for the purpose of attending to investors'
grievances including transfer / transmission / transposition of shares of the Company. The
Committee met four times during the year.

GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL MECHANISM COMMITTEE

The Committee as constituted by the Board comprises of two independent directors namely,
Shri Ravi Goenka (Chairman), Shri Sudip Kumar Mukherjee and one non- independent
director namely Shri Gaurav Periwal. The Committee met once during the year.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

The CSR Committee of the Board comprises of three members, of which two are independent
directors and one non-executive director namely Shri Sudip Kumar Mukherjee (Chairman),
Shri Ravi Goenka and Shri Gaurav Periwal respectively. The Committee met once during the
reporting period.

This year the Company has contributed to “SHREE FOUNDATION TRUST”, a trust undertaking
various CSR activities for promotion of Rural Development Projects as part of CSR activities.

The Annual Report on CSR activities of FY 2023-24 with requisite details in the specified
format as required under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is
annexed hereto and forms part of this report.
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The CSR Policy of the Company is also annexed hereto and forms part of this Report.
POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
framed a policy, inter alia, for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management
including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of
directors which is annexed hereto and forms part of this Report. Further, Policy relating to
remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees is also
annexed hereto and forms part of this Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company follows the criteria for determining qualification,
positive attributes, independence of Directors as per applicable policies of the Company.

Directors are appointed /re-appointed with the approval of the Members for a term in
accordance with the provisions of the law and the Articles of Association of the Company.
All Directors, other than Independent Directors, are liable to retire by rotation, unless
otherwise specifically provided under the Articles of Association or under any statute or
terms of appointment.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A separate section on the Company's corporate governance practices, as per RBI Circular
No. RBI/2022-23/26 DOR.ACC.REC.N0.20/21.04.018/2022-23 dated 19.04.2022
applicable for unlisted NBFC's is provided as part of this report.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has always provided a congenial atmosphere for work that is free from
discrimination and harassment, including sexual harassment. Keeping in view the
problem of sexual harassment the company has framed a policy to prevent incidents of
sexual harassment as required under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules framed there under.
However, constitution of Internal Committee as required under the Act is not applicable
to the Company since the company has less than 10 employees. All employees are
covered under this Policy. During the year under review, the Company has not received
any complaint of sexual harassment, hence no disclosures are applicable.
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EXTRACT OF ANNUALRETURN

Company does not have any website therefore disclosure under section 134 (3) (a) of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not required.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS

There are no significant & material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals
which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) under historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values pursuant to the provisions of the
Act. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy. These form part of the Notes to the financial
statements.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134 (3) (c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013, the Board of Directors of the Company hereby states and confirms that:

i) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year 2023-24, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures, ifany

i) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and
of the profit of the Company for FY 2023-24;

iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
otherirregularities;

iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

V) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
thatsuch internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

10
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vi)

they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and are operating effectively.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

A. Conservation of Energy

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
None of the employees is drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set outin Rule 5(2)

of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
appended to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has complied with allthe applicable provisions of Secretarial Standards

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING AND OUTGO

i

the wteps raken ofF Impact on comsersation of
ENargy;

i

the steps taken by ithe compary for wtlizing
afternate sources af energy;

fiii]

the capital investment on energy conssrvation
eduipmants,

The L_-I}I'l'll.'lill'"."i Operaiaang ang mist
enargy-intensive. Thersfore, there is
no neesd to take measures  to
conserye the comsumption of energy,

B, Technology Absorption

i

the afferts made towards technology absorption;

fiil

the benefits derived like product improvement, cost
reduction, product  development  of  Imporn
sufpstitution,

tiii]

in case of imported technology {imported during the

last thres years reckaned from the beginning of the

financial year}-

() the detalls of tachnoiogy Imported;

(b} the year of impaor;

i} whether the technology been fully abeorbed;

(d} If nor fully absorbed, areas where absespiion
has not teken place, and the reasons theseof;
anil

{ivl

the esxspenditure  incurred  on research and

Developinent,

Operatlons of the Compary do not

irmmolve amy  kind of  special
technology  and  there was o
enpenditure  on research &

development during the financial
WEAT.
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€. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo
Details of Foreign Exchange Earnimgs and Qutgo durimg the ywear are as follows,

Fareign Exchange Earmings MIL
Foreign Exchange Dutgo MIL

TRANSFER OF SHARES ONLY IN DEMAT MODE

The transfer of securities can be processed only in dematerialized form. Further,
securities of the Company shall be issued in dematerialized form only while processing
service requests in relation to issue of duplicate securities certificates, renewal/
exchange of securities certificate, endorsement, sub-division/ splitting and
consolidation of securities certificates/folios, transmission and transposition.
Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled
and signed Form ISR-4, the format of which is available on the website of the Company's
Registrar and Transfer Agent — Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited. It may be noted
that any service request can be processed only after the folio is KYC compliant.

UPDATING KYC DETAILS

The shareholders holding shares in physical form should update Permanent Account
Number (PAN), KYC, bank details, etc with the RTA. The investor service requests forms
for updation of PAN, KYC, bank details and Nomination viz., Form ISR-1, ISR-2, ISR-3, SH-
13, SH-14 are available on the website of the RTA www.mdpl.in. In view of the above, we
urge the shareholders to submit the Investor Service Request form alongwith the
supporting documents.

In respect of shareholders who hold shares in dematerialized form and wish to update
their PAN, KYC, Bank details and Nomination are requested to contact their respective
Depository Participants.

12
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record the co-operation and support
received from the shareholders for their committed engagement with the Company.
Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation to the
Company's employees and take this opportunity to thank them and hope that they will

maintain their commitment to excellence in the years to come.

Far and on behalf of the Boasd

Place - Kaolkata [ASHOK BHAMDARE) {5.K. MUKHERIEE)
Dated: 287 June, 2024 DN (K022 10 DHN: (0029362
Carecone
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AutomEr (B}
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Dietaeks of poracts of lerangseiis of Hansachons not & ame's kogth
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*amers) of the relaed pasty and mature of relarionsten

thi

Mature pf confracts rrangemenis Fansactions

(cy

[meration of the coniracts’amang emeolo transactons

i)

Satiesl terms OF e SORITHEIE OF M7 Of FHEacHms
including the valee, if amy

(e}

Jsnficanca for mricring, wie such Conracs of ATACEmenE of
ransachons

£

dare{s] of appreval by the Board

(8

Ampounst paid & advances if sy

th

Dt o6 which the spacial resnluhon was passed in geoeral mestime
2= requared] snder firss posnes e mection 1548

Dietarls of marerial contrects or aangemenm of rarsactans af wm's legh

ih

TEame of COMmEICTs’ S ges eSS ctio

basis
Shres Capital Services Litd. - having
(@) | Wamss)of the related pasty and sature of relatsactep sgraficant miluence ooer e
Corsgany
Renewal of leave & License

ApTesrrel | pavHnent of Tent o
Office ace

iy | Drratian of the coniracts aanz emenls transaciian s 3 years from F.Y. 202124
i %alient tenms of the coRIracis or ATANPSMENIT O TEreactans Rent Bz 24,000 per annum plus
incloding the valise, if any: GET
(2] | Cateiy)of approval by e Board, if sy A0% June, 2023
(E) | Amcount paid 2 achances, if any NL
Faor and an behalf of the Boord
Flace | Kolksta (ASHOK BHANDART) (5K MUKHERJEE)
Dated- 23% Fuee, 2024 DIN: 00012210 DI 00025362
Driteciong
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
1. Briefoutline on CSR Policy of the Company
The Company aims to focus on environment preservation, spreading education, promoting sports,
eradicating poverty, women empowerment, urban and rural development and supporting needy people of
the society for their overall upliftment. Though its social activities are to focus primarily on areas surrounding
its operations, which may include people/programs which may not be so related strictly considering overall
upliftment objectives.
2. Composition of CSR Committee:
The CSR Committee comprises 3 members, of which 2 are Independent Directors. The Committee met once
duringthe reporting period on 20th February, 2024. The details of members and the meeting are as under:
L : Nambar of i Humsher of macsings of CER
] f =g 4]
N i “‘“‘;?::::;"““ af CSR Committes | Cosamittes sctandad durisg
bl during the viar il yoar
. Gl i
1 561530 Muichenyss Flibled et Diibeclion) i 1
Membar
3 =n Bann Goesk 1 1
s ’ Independent Direcser)
) Membar
3 B Croraw Pereral { Won-smeoulive 1 o
Map-Independest irecton)
3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board
are disclosed on the website of the company.
NIL
4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report)
Not Applicable
5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
year, if any:
CRe Laraf
[Bwa | Fesscial | Ameunr sveilsbe for wer-off fom | Amowst regeired o be e
Vear precedipg Beancial vears {in Hap < Bar ihe fimawcial vear, il
L ! | amy i Hay
T 202122 R, 00 Lacs = 08 Lacs
2 kL2 | B 0 Lacs : R 382 Laes
\
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6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) : Rs. 1,673.68 Lacs
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) : Rs.33.48 Lacs
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years:
Rs.0.05 Lacs
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c): Rs.33.43 Lacs
8.  (a)CSRamountspent or unspent for the financial year:
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10. Incase of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created
oracquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details).
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Not Applicable
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Not Applicable
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc.: Not Applicable
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location
ofthe capitalasset):  NotApplicable
11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5): Not Applicable
Plare Ealkata Fee Mibgrdjan Fimbeane 1imijed
Crate: 2E2 hme, 0024
BB Dl leer | uw Rarvi Croomidics
Chamman af CER Conmises Dyector
DI: (i Fadsd D 39N
\
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Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy)

Digvijay Finlease Limited (DFL) believes that for its operation and growth to be sustainable, it has to be
responsive to social needs. Its progress is thus underlined by strict adherence to environment preservation,
social upliftment, spread of education, promotion and development of sports, women empowerment and
rural and urban development etc. DFL believes in making social development as an integral part of its
business activities so as to bring about a meaningful change in the lives of people. DFL considers social
responsibility as a voluntary act rather than an additional activity mandated by statute.

DFL has in line with / in conformity with the statutory requirement, prepared its CSR Policy. DFL will maintain
that all the activities that will be undertaken by it will be in accordance with the policy and that the projects

and activities that will be undertaken are in full compliance with Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013.

The contents of DFL's CSR Policy are given below:-

Vision, Objective and Scope of the Policy

DFL Programmes will focus on promotion and development of sports, education, health care and
urban and rural development, women empowerment, preservation of environment and ecology
and supporting needy people of the society for their overall upliftment. Though its social activities
will be focusing primarily on areas surrounding its operations, it may include people / programs
which may not be so related strictly considering overall objectives.

Mandate of Corporate Social Responsibility

DFL is committed to spend 2% of its Average Net Profits of last three financial years as defined in
the Rules towards its social initiatives.

Board / Committee

The CSR Committee of the Board will oversee the social activities to be undertaken by the
Company.

Identification of Projects and Modalities of Project Execution

The projects to be undertaken by the Company shall conform to the guidelines formulated or laid
down by the Government from time to time under Schedule VIl to the Companies Act, 2013.

Organisational Mechanism

DFL will seek assistance of outside agencies and/or collaborative partnerships may be formed with
like-minded stakeholders in order to widen the Company's reach inimplementing its CSR Policy.

Implementation

CSR Committee of the Board is entrusted with implementing the social activities / initiatives and
establishing a monitoring mechanismin line with the policy of the company.
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10.

11.

Budget—CSR Corpus

DFL will allocate necessary budget after the beginning of relevant accounting year for social
initiatives. Fund allocation for various activities will be made on suitable and/or progressive basis.
Performance Management

DFL will adopt suitable approach for measuring the actual performance of the projects undertaken
whenever required and Audit Committee of the Board of the Company shall review the
performance in conformity with the provisions of law.

Information Dissemination and Policy Communication

The Company's engagement in this domain shall be disseminated through its Annual Reports.
Management Commitment

Our Board of Directors, Management and all of employees subscribe to the philosophy of
compassionate care. We believe and act on ethos of generosity and compassion, characterised by
awillingness to build a society that works for everyone. This is the cornerstone of our CSR Policy.
Review of Policy

CSR Committee of the Board of Digvijay Finlease Limited will review the policy from time to time

based on the changing needs and aspirations of the target beneficiaries and the legal frame work
and make suitable modifications as may be necessary.

Place: Knfkata For Diguijay Finlease Lid,

Date: 28% lune, 2024

RAVI GOENKA 5. K. MUKHERIEE
Directar Chairmam of C58 Committae

DIN01393012 Do GO0E 9362
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Policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of directors
Introduction
Digvijay Finlease Limited (DFL) believes that an enlightened Board consciously creates a culture of leadership
to provide along-term vision and policy approach to improve the quality of governance.

DFL recognizes the importance of independent directors in achieving the effectiveness of the Board. DFL
aims to have an optimum combination of Non-Executive and Independent Directors.
Scope and Exclusion
This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination & Remuneration Committee for identifying
persons who are qualified to become Directors and to determine the independence of Directors, in case of
theirappointment asindependent directors of the Company.
Terms and References
Inthis Policy, the terms shall have the following meanings:
“Director” meansa director appointed to the Board of the Company.
“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” means the committee constituted by DFL's Board in
accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.
“Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Policy
Qualifications and Criteria
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and the Board, shall review on an annual basis, appropriate
skills, knowledge and experience required of the Board as a whole and its individual members. The objective
is to have a Board with diverse background and experience that are relevant for the Company's business
operations.
In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the Committee may take into account factors such
as:

. General understanding of the Company's business dynamics and social perspective;

° Educational and professional background;

° Standingin the profession;

° Personal and professional ethics, integrity and values;

. Willingness to devote sufficient time and zeal in carrying out their duties and responsibilities

effectively.
\
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The proposed appointee shall also fulfill the following requirements:

° Shall possess a Director Identification Number (DIN) and Permanent Account Number (PAN);

° Shall not be disqualified under the Companies Act, 2013;

° Shall give his written consentin prescribed form to act as a Director;

° Shall endeavor to attend all Board Meetings and wherever he is appointed as a Committee
Member, the Committee Meetings;

° Shall abide by the ethics policy established by the Company for Directors, employees and Senior
Management Personnel;

° Shall disclose his concern or interest in any Company or Companies or bodies corporate, firms, or
other association of individuals including his shareholding at the first meeting of the Board in every
financial year and thereafter whenever there is a change in the disclosures already made;

° Such other requirements as may be prescribed, from time to time, under the Companies Act, 2013
and otherrelevant laws.

The Committee shall evaluate each individual with the objective of having a group that best enables the
success of the Company's business.
Criteria of Independence
The Committee shall assess the independence of Directors at the time of appointment / re-appointment and
the Board shall assess the same annually. The Board shall re-assess determination of independence when
any new interests or relationships are disclosed by the Director.
To follow the criteria of independence as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013.
The Independent Directors shall abide by the “Code for Independent Directors” as specified in Schedule IV to
the Companies Act, 2013 and as may be amended from time to time.
Other directorships /committee memberships
The Board members are expected to have adequate time, expertise and experience to contribute to
effective Board performance. The Committee shall take into account the nature of, and the time involved ina
Director's service on other Boards, in evaluating the suitability of the individual Director and making its
recommendations to the Board.
A Director shall not serve as Director in more than 20 companies of which not more than 10 shall be Public
Limited Companies.
A Director shall not serve as an Independent Director in more than 7 Listed Companies and not more than 3
Listed Companiesin case heis serving as a Whole-time Director in any Listed Company.
A Director shall not be a memberin more than 10 committees or act as Chairman of more than 5 committees
across all companies in which he holds directorship.
Note: For the purpose of considering the limit of the Committees, Audit Committee and Stake holders'
Relationship Committee of all Public Limited Companies, whether listed or not, shall be included and all
other companies including Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies under Section 8
of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be excluded.

\
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Policy relating to remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees
Introduction
Digvijay Finlease Limited (DFL) recognizes the importance of aligning the business objectives with specific
and measurable individual objectives. The Company has therefore formulated the remuneration policy for
its directors, key managerial personnel and other employees keepingin view the following objectives:

° Ensuring that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate talent to run the Company successfully.
° Ensuring that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets the performance
benchmarks.
° Ensuring that remuneration involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short
and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.
However, there is noincentive pay at present.
Scope and Exclusion
This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for
recommending to the Board the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees of the Company.
Terms and References
In this Policy, the terms shall have the following meanings:
“Director” means a director appointed to the Board of the Company.
“Key Managerial Personnel” means
i) the Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence a Whole-time
Director;
ii) the Company Secretary;
iii)  the Chief Financial Officer; and
iv) such other officer as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013
“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” means the committee constituted by DFL's Board in
accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Policy
The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, shall review and
approve the remuneration payable to the Executive and Non-Executive Directors of the Company within the
overall limits subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company wherever required. Non-Executive
Directors shall be entitled to sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and the Committees thereof.
In addition to the sitting fees the Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to be paid their reasonable
travelling, hotel and other expenses incurred for attending Board and Committee meetings or otherwise
incurredin the discharge of their duties as Directors.
\
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The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, shall also review and
approve the remuneration payable to the Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees of the Company.
Employee individual remuneration shall be determined according to their qualifications, and work
experience as well as their roles and responsibilities and shall be based on various factors such as job profile,
skill sets, seniority and experience.

The remuneration structure of the Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees shall
mainly include the following:

a) BasicPay
b) Perquisitesand Allowances
c) Retiral Benefits
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Report on Corporate Governance
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Cy Divergencs im Assets Classification and Provisioning

BBl has nod assessed co identified any mddifionnl provistoning requiremend mo the cese of the
Compainy cilssr than what bas been provided for. Henes not applicsbls,

Far and on belealf of the Board

Place | Kolkata (ASHOK BHANTVART) {(5.K. MUKHERIEE)
Dated: 25% June, 2024 DN Q0OLZ210 DIk DIOZ9362
Directors
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Digvijay Finlease Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Digvijay Finlease Limited (“the Company”)
which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of changes in equity and Statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Ind AS prescribed under Section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, its profit,
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
“Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on

the Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report but does not include

the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and
accounting principles generally accepted in India, specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, asamended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee thatan audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
orerror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and eventsin a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any

identified misstatementsin the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

2.A

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, and on the
basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
farasitappearsfrom our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the statement of cash flow and changes in equity dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, asamended.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Reportin “Annexure B”.

g) Withrespecttothe other mattersto be included in the Auditor's Reportin accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, asamended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
ourinformation and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements— Refer Note 32 to the financial statements;

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

¢) Therewere noamounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d) (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
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any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material
misstatement.

e) Nodividendhasbeen declared or paid during the year by the Company.

f)  Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting

software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.
As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014 is applicable from 1 April,
2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per statutory requirement for record retention is not applicable
for the financial year ended 31March, 2024.

C. Inouropinion, according to the information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the company to its directors is within the limits prescribed under section 197 read with Schedule V
ofthe Actand therulesthereunder.

For S. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 309005E

CA Vivek Newatia

Partner

Membership No. 062636

Dated: The 28" day of June, 2024.
Place: Kolkata

UDIN: 24062636BKFIKR4594
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Annexure -A
(Referred toin paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report
to the Members of Digvijay Finlease Limited of even date)
In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:
i)(a) Inrespect of Property, Plantand Equipment:
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of its Property, Plantand Equipment.
(b) In our opinion property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management at regular
intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification during the year.
(c) The title/lease deeds of immovable properties (which are included under the head 'Property, plant and
equipment') are held in the name of the company exceptin the following cases:
it Rsaman Far
pramater, Z
Dareription | Grogs Carrying Hald in b purtod Fieki il b
of property | vabae [in lakhs] | name of | Feedid in names
relative ar
ol o party
smployes |
Freetalkl 43575 Aharn | Mo 1 April 2016 Procedural
Land Sepurites i [Appointed dete | delay - beld in
Privats | of merger] th= nsme ol
Lirsansad st hila
smalzamating
tompany
(d) The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant, and Equipment during the year.
(e) We have not come across any proceedings that have been initiated under Section 24(1) of the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 by the Initiating Officer (I0) and/ or any proceedings
being pending against the company before the Initiating Officer/ Adjudicating Authority/ Appellate Tribunal/
High Court/ Supreme Court during any of the preceding financial years.
ii)(a) The Company is in the business of investing and financing activity and consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.
(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of X 5 crore, in aggregate, at any
\
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point of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and

hence, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

iii)(a) Since the Company is engaged in non-banking financial activity, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a) of the

Orderare notapplicabletoit.

(b) The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of
all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided to the extent applicable to it are not

prejudicial to the Company'sinterest.

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans (together referred to as “loan assets”), where the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated, note 3.1 to the financial
statements explains the Company's accounting policy relating to impairment of financial assets which
includes loan assets. In accordance with that policy, loan asset with balance as at 31 March 2024 amounting
to 1,950 lakhs was categorised as credit impaired (“Stage 3”). The Company did not have any other loan

asset where the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated.

(d) The total amount overdue for more than ninety days in respect of loans and advances in the nature of
loans, as at 31 March, 2024 is X 1,950 lakhs. Reasonable steps are being taken by the Company for the
recovery of the principal and interest.

(e) Since the Company's principal business is non-banking financial activity, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(e)

ofthe Orderare not applicable toit.

(f) The Company has not granted loans and advances in nature of loans repayable on demand or without

specifying any terms or period of repayment. Hence, reporting under clause 3(f) is not applicable.

iv)The company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect

ofloans granted, investments made and guarantee or securities provided as applicable.

V)The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act, any
other relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions
stated in clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or the National Company Law

Tribunal or the Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal against the Company in this regard.

vi)The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the

Companies Act, 2013, for the Company. Accordingly, provision of clause 3(vi) of the order are not applicable
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tothe company.

vii)(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Wealth tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, GST, Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities to the extent
applicable to it. There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax,
sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, duty of excise or cess which have remained outstanding as at 31

March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) We report that the following statutory dues have not been deposited with the appropriate authority on

account of dispute:-

Name of the Hature of Dues | Amount (% in Period which the Foruwm where
AT Lakikis) amount raletes ta | dispute is pending
Incoree Tax Ak, | moome Ta 59,71 | A.¥ 2021-22 I Tan
1961 Appediate Tribunal
Incormve Tax Ach, | Income Tas BET.BE | A.¥. 2021-23 Commssoner  of
1961 InCaime Tax
{appeal)
Incormed Tax ACE, | |meopme Tax 42396 | ALY, 2023-24 Commissoner  of
1461 Inmme Tax
{Appaals]

vii)The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the

books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 asincome during the year.

ix) (a) The Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any lender during the year. Accordingly, clause

3(ix)(a) of the Orderis notapplicable.

(b) The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or

government or government authority.

(c) The Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not

applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds have been
raised during the year by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(d) of the Orderis not applicable.

(e) We report that the Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,

clause 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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X) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debtinstruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the company or no fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central

Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii)The transactions with related parties are in compliance with the provisions of sections 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required under Ind AS 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

xiv)(a) The company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its
business and internal audit of the company has been conducted as per scope of the audit.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the period under
audit.

xv) The Company has not entered into non cash transactions during the year, in terms of section 192 of the Act,
with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xv) are not applicable
tothe company.

xvi) (a) The Company is required to obtain the registration under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 and the Company has obtained the requisite registration as a non-banking financial institution under
section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,1934.
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(b) The company has obtained Certificate of Registration (CoR) from Reserve Bank of India for conducting
activities related to Non-Banking Financing activities.

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India.

(d) The Group hasno CICas part of the group. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Orderis not applicable.

xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the current financial year and in the immediately

preceding financial year.

xviiijThere has been no resignation of statutory auditors during the year and accordingly reporting under clause

3 (xviii) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment

of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor's knowledge
of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that thisis notan
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

xx) (a) The Company is not required to transfer any unspent amount pertaining to the year under report to a

fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act, 2013 in compliance with second proviso to sub section
5 of section 135 of the said Act.

(b) There is no amount which is remaining unspent under sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act pursuant
toany ongoing CSR project.

xxi) Reporting under clause xxi of the Orderis not applicable.

For S. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 309005E

CA Vivek Newatia

Partner

Membership No. 062636

Dated: The 28" day of June, 2024.
Place: Kolkata

UDIN: 24062636BKFIKR4594
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Annexure B
(Referred to in paragraph 2A(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our
report to the Members of Digvijay Finlease Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Digvijay Finlease
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company forthe year ended on that date.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(the “Guidance Note”).

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion onthe Company'sinternal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For S. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 309005E

CA Vivek Newatia

Partner

Membership No. 062636

Dated: The 28" day of June, 2024.
Place: Kolkata

UDIN: 24062636BKFIKR4594
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
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Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
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1 Corporate Information
Digvijay Finlease Limited (referred to as "The Company" or "DFL") is a public unlisted
company, limited by shares incorporated on 1st May, 1992 and domiciled in India. The
Company is carrying on business as a "Non-Banking Financial Company" (NBFC) registered
with the Reserve Bank of India. The Company is engaged mainly in investment in shares and
securities and granting of loans and advances. The Company's registered office isat 21, Strand
Road, Kolkata 700001.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 were approved
and authorised forissue by the Board of Directors on 28th June 2024.

2 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

2.1 Statement of compliance with Ind AS
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (referred to as "Ind AS") prescribed under section 133 read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time.

2.2 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of

each reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below.
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (), and all values are rounded
to the nearest lacs, unless otherwise indicated.

3 Material accounting policies

3.1 Financial instruments

(i) Classification
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets, other than equity, are classified into, Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss
account (FVTPL) or at amortised cost. Financial assets that are equity instruments are
classified as FVTPL or FVOCI. Financial liabilities are classified as amortised cost category
and FVTPL.

(ii) Business Model assessment and Solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) test:
Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the business model and
results of SPPI test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects
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(ii)

how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business
objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence
including:

- How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within
that business model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management
personnel

The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets
held within that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed

How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the
compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual
cash flows collected)

-The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the
Company's assessment.

If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the
Company's original expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the
remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such
information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going
forward.

Initial recognition
The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their
contractual terms and the business model for managing the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in the Statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities and
deposits are recognised on the trade date i.e. when a Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Loans, debt securities and deposits are
recognised when the funds are transferred to the customers account. Trade receivables
are measured at the transaction price.

46




DIGVUAY FINLEASE LIMITED
32nd ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24
CIN No. U67120WB2001PLC093899

s

(iv) Subsequent measurement

(a) Financial assets atamortised cost:

Financial assets having contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding and that
are held within a business model whose objective is to hold such assetsin order to collect
such contractual cash flows are classified in this category. Subsequently these are
measured atamortised cost using effective interest method less any impairment losses.

(b) Debt Instruments at FVOCI

Debt instruments that are measured at FVOCI have contractual terms that give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
principal outstanding and that are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. These
instruments largely comprise long-term investments made by the Company.FVOCI debt
instruments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to
changes in fair value recognised in OCI. Interest income and gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured at
amortised cost. On derecognition, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
OClarereclassified from OCl to profit or loss.

(c) Equity Instruments at FVOCI

These include financial assets that are equity instruments as defined in IND AS 32
“Financial Instruments: Presentation” and are not held for trading and where the
Company's management has elected to irrevocably designated the same as Equity
instruments at FVOCI upon initial recognition. Subsequently, these are measured at fair
value and changes therein are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, net
of applicable income taxes.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit or loss.

Dividends from these equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss when the right to receive the payment has been established.

(d) Fair value through Profit and loss account:

Financial assets are measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCl oninitial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit
orloss.
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(v) Financial Liabilities and equity instruments:
(a) Classification as debt or equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
(b) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of directissue costs.
(c) Other Financial Liabilities:
These are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate.

(vi) Derecognition of Financial assets and Financial liabilities:
The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

(vii) Impairment of financial assets:
The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a financial asset
that is at amortized cost or fair value through OCI. Loss allowance in respect of financial
assets is measured at an amount equal to life time expected credit losses and is
calculated as the difference between their carrying amount and the present value of the
expected future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

(viii) Reclassification of Financial assets:
The Company does not re-classify its financial assets subsequent to their initial
recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances when the Company changes its
business model for managing such financial assets. The Company does not re-classify its
financial liabilities.

3.2 Determination of fair value:
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
inanorderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction
price (fair value of the consideration given or received). Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Company determines the fair value of financial instruments that are

\
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quoted in active markets using the quoted bid prices (financial assets held) or quoted ask
prices (financial liabilities held) and using valuation techniques for other instruments.
Valuation techniquesinclude discounted cash flow method and other valuation models.

3.3 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent comprise of cash at banks & on hand term deposits with
original maturity of less than three months, which are subject to insignificant risk of
changesinvalues.

3.4 Property, plantand equipment (PPE)

PPE are stated at cost (including incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure
related to PPE is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of item can be measured
reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE, outstanding at each reporting date are
shown under other non-financial assets. The cost of property, plant and equipment not
ready for its intended use at each reporting date are disclosed as capital work-in-
progress.

Subsequent expenditure related to the asset are added to its carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset only if itincreases the future benefits of the existing asset,
beyond its previously assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured
reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is recognised in other income expense in the statement of profit
andlossintheyearthe assetis derecognised.

3.5 Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on written down value
method (WDV) to write down their residual values over their estimated useful life
specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The residual values, useful lives and
methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Changes in the expected
useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as
appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.
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3.6 Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date to determine if there is any indication of
impairment, based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then an
impairment review is undertaken and the recoverable amount is calculated as the higher
of fairvalue less costs of disposal and the asset's value in use.

3.7 Employee Benefits Expenses

(i) Short Term Employee Benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when
the employees render the service. These benefits include performance incentive and
compensated absences, which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end
of the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(ii) Defined contribution schemes
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the
Company pays specified monthly contributions to Provident Fund. The Company's
contribution is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

(iii) Gratuity
Liability with regard to long-term employee benefits is provided for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation at the Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gain / loss is recognised
immediately in the statement of other comprehensive income.

3.8 Taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

(i) CurrentTax
The current tax is based on taxable profit for the year under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized on all temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Company's financial statements except
when the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects
neither the accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of transaction Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
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laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed
at each reporting date and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Currentand deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when
the same relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly
in Equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax relating to such items are also
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in Equity respectively.

3.9 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that
is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare. cases where
there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

3.10 Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPSis calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
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year.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.11 Cash-flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past
or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

3.12 Use of estimates, judgements and adjustments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income, expenses, and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period end.
Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current
events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and
inany future periods affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed in the paragraphs that follow.

(i) Useful EconomicLivesand Impairment of Other Assets
The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment (PPE) is based on a number of
factors including the effects of obsolescence, usage of the asset and other economic
factors (such as known technological advances).

The Company reviews the useful life of PPE at the end of each reporting date and any
changes could affect the depreciation rates prospectively.

The Company also reviews its property, plant and equipment for possible impairment if
there are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that the carrying value of the
assets may not be recoverable. In assessing the property, plant and equipment for
impairment, factors leading to significant reduction in profits, such as the Company's
business plans and changesin regulatory environment are taken into consideration.
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(ii) Contingencies and Commitments
Inthe normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation
and other claims against the Company. Where an outflow of funds is believed to be
probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on
management's assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant
external advice, management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such
liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the financial statements.

Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal
proceedings, the Company does not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on
the Company's financial position or profitability.

(iii) FairValue Measurements and Valuation Processes
Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Information about the
valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and
liabilities are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

(iv) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets For Carried Forward Tax Losses and Unused Tax Credit
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised based on an assessment of the
probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilised. In addition significant judgement is required in assessing the
impact of any legal or economic limits.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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During the year, the Company had granted loans amounting to X Nil (previous year - X 360.00) to promoters
(as defined under the Companies Act 2013). However, the company has no outstanding loans to promoters,
directors, key manageral personnel and the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act 2013) as at
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Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount by stages in relation to loans and its corresponding

impairment loss allowances is as follows :-
(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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The following disclosures is required pursuant to RBI circular dated March 13, 2020 -
Circular No.RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No. 109/22.10.106/2019-20
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There is no difference between the provisioning requirements as per IND AS 109 and IRACP norms.
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Note 7: Investments
(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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7.1 The marketvalue of investments is equal to the book value.
7.2. The Company has elected an irrevocable option to designate its investments in equity instruments
through FVOCI, as the said investments are not held for trading and company continues to invest for long
term and remain invested in leaders in sectors, which it believes to have potential to remain accretive over
thelongterm.
7.3. Of the total dividend recognised during the year from investment in equity share designated at FVOCI X
211.16 lakhs (Previous year X 51.47 lakhs) is relating to investment derecognised during the period and X
4,980.96 lakhs (previous year X 4,331.85 lakhs) pertains to investment held at the end of reporting period.
7.4. During the year, total cumulative gains/(losses) of X 2,630.30 lakhs (Previous year (-) X 1,086.53 lakhs)
on investment in equity shares designated at FVOCI have been transferred from/to retained earnings on
derecognition of related investments after adjusting for tax effect thereon. The fair value of investments in
equity shares designated at FVOCI derecognised during the year on the date of derecognition is X 20,915.80
lakhs (previous yearX15,992.28 lakhs).
7.5.The other disclosure regarding fair value and risk arising from financial instruments are explained in Note
No.33and 34.
\
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7.6 Details of investments are as follows :-

(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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18.1 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 10 per share. Each holder of equity
share is entitled to one vote per share. Dividend, if any, proposed by the board of directors is subject to
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. In the event of liquidation of the
company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to the remaining assets of the company after
distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held by them.
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18.3 The Company is a non-banking finance company, the objective of the Company is to invest in long term
investments and granting of loans to ensure sustainable growth. The Company’s objective is to maintain
appropriate levels of capital to support its business strategy taking into account the regulatory, economic
and commercial environment.
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This reserve represents the difference between value of the net assets transferred, consideration received
for such assets in excess of orginal cost and excess value received in amalgamation.

This reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilized in accordance with the provisions
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Statutory reserve
Statutory Reserve represents the Reserve Fund created under Section 45 IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly an amount representing 20% of Profit for the period is transferred to the fund for the year.
General reserve
General reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer of profits from retained earnings for
appropriation purposes. General reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another
andis notanitem of other comprehensive income.
Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfer to general reserves,
dividends and other distributions made to the shareholders.
Debt instruments through other comprehensive income
This reserve represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on the revaluation of debt instruments
measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax. The amount is transferred from this
reserve to the statement of profitand loss when the debt instrument is derecognised.
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income
This represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income,net of tax, under an irrevocable option, net of amount
reclassified to retained earnings when such asssets are disposed off,if any.
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Note 29:- Employee benefits
(a) Defined benefit plans:

Contribution to defined benefit plans, recognised as an expense in profit and loss statement for the year are
asunder:

Year ended Year ended
MEE 31 Manch 2024 31 March 20023
Grabulty - Het defined benefit obligaticn 242 148
.43 Tof

Defined benefit plan

The employee gratuity scheme of the company is unfunded. The present value of obligation is determined
based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method as on 31st March 2024, which
recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The company's gratuity expense is recognized
under the head - "Gratuity" in note 24.

Movement of defined benefit obligation

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over
theyearare as follows:

Year emded Year ended

P 31 March 2024 31 March 2013
Diefined benefi obligation at beginning of the year 1337 073
Curment serion cost 1.4% p ) |
Inferest cost 0,53 .77
Benefits pasd - -
Bctuadtal fgain)floss 063 0.Aa6
Defined bepafit abligation at end of the year 16.31 1327
Liatiiity recegnised i the balance shees
Pridang walue of defired banafit ool gaton 16.31 13.27
Amoant recopsised a5 labiity in Bedence sheet 16.51 1827

Expenses recognised during the year (Under the head “Employee benefits expense" — Refer note no. 24)

. _— - Yoar anded Yoar ented

h Sagicm 1 March I024 #l March a3
Current senvice cosk 1.49 L33
Past senvice cost fwested) . =
ek interest coal 0.5 o
Total amouni 2.4 L8
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The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market.
The discounting rate is considered based on market yield on government bonds having currency and terms
consistent with the currency in terms of the post employment benefit obligations.
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The company's pending litigations comprise mainly claims agianst the company for proceedings pending
with the Income Tax authorities. The company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and
has made adequate provisions wherever required and disclosed the contingent liabilities wherever
applicable, in its financial statements. The company does not reasonably expect the outcome of theses
proceedings to have a material impact on its financial statements.
* Contingent upon certain specific outcomes as outlined in the share purchase agreement.
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(i) Categories of Financial Instruments

Note 33:- Disclosure on financial instruments

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for
which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement
and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset,
financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements.
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(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for
which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the
inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three
levels prescribed under the accounting standards.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrumentisincludedinlevel 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
includedinlevel 3.

(i) Valuation technique used to determine Fair Value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
o the fair value of investment in quoted equity shares and mutual funds is measured at quoted price or NAV.

o the fair value of level 2 instruments is valued using inputs based on information about market participants
assumptionsand other data that are available.

(iv) Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at Fair value - recurring Fair Value
Measurements
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(v) Significant estimates

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation
techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. For details of the key
assumptions used and the impact of changes to these assumptions see (ii) above.

(vi) Fair value of assets and liabilities measured at cost/amortised cost

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amount would be
significantly different from the values that would be eventually received or settled. Management assessed
that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, Other financial assets and other financial
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts of these instruments, as discussed below:
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Note 34
Financial risk management

The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company registered with the Reserve Bank of India. On account of
its business activities it is exposed to various financial risks associated with financials products such as credit
or default risk, market risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and inflationary risk. However, the Company has a
robust financial risk management system in place to identify, evaluate, manage and mitigate various risks
associated with its financial products to ensure that desired financial objectives are met. The Company's
senior management is responsible for establishing and monitoring the risk management framework within
its overall risk management objectives and strategies, as approved by the Board of Director. Such risk
management strategies and objectives are established to identify and analyse potential risks faced by the
Company, set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls, periodically review the changes in market
conditions and assess risk management performance. Any change in Company's risk management
objectives and policies needs prior approval of it's Board of Directors.

Creditrisk

This risk is common to all investors who invest in bonds and debt instruments and it refers to a situation
where a particular bond/debenture issuer is unable to make the expected principal payment interest rate
payment, or both. Similarly, a lender bears the risk that the borrower may default in the payment of
contractual interest or principal on its debt obligation, or both. The entity continuously monitors defaults of
the customersand other counterparties and incorporates thisinformationintoits credit risk control.

Market risk:

Market risk is a form of systematic risk associated with the day-to-day fluctuation in the market prices of
shares and securities and such market risk affects all securities and investors in the same manner. These daily
price fluctuations follows its own broad trends and cycles and are more news and transaction driven rather
than fundamentals and many a times, it may affect the returns from an investment. Market risks majorly
comprises of two types - interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk.
Financial instruments affected by market risks include borrowings and investments.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is a type of systematic risk that particularly affects fixed rate debt instruments like bonds and
debentures. The value of the fixed-rate debt instruments generally decline due to rise in interest rates and
vice versa. The rationale is that a bond is a promise of a future stream of payments; an investor will offer less
for a bond that pays-out at a rate lower than the rates offered in the current market. A rising interest rate
scenario also affects the Company's interest expenditure on borrowed funds.

The Company monitors the interest rate scenarios on a regular basis and accordingly takes investments
decisions as whether to invest in fixed rate debt instruments, shares and securities at a particular point of
time.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market traded
price. It arises from financial assets such as investments in equity instruments, bonds, mutual funds etc. The
Company is exposed to price risk arising mainly from investments carried at FVOCI which are valued using
quoted prices in active markets. A sensitivity analysis demonstrating the impact of the change in market
prices of these instruments from the prices existing as at the reporting date is given below:
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Imp of o foial comprehermces ncome for year |
ed 31 b 2023 116, 200,67 (1156.220.67}

Equity instrument through OCI being a component of other equity would increase/decrease as a result of
gain/loss on equity securities classified as fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity refers to the readiness of the Company to sell and realise its financial assets. Liquidity risk is one of
the most critical risk factors for Companies which is into the business of investments in shares and securities.
It is the risk of not being able to realise the true price of a financial asset, or is not being able to sell the
financial asset at all because of non-availability of buyer Unwillingness to lend or restricted lending by Banks
and Financial Institutions may also lead to liquidity concerns for the entities.

The Company maintains a well-diversified portfolio of investments in shares and securities . A dedicated
team of market experts are monitoring the markets on a continuous basis, which advises the management
for timely purchase or sale of securities. The management ensures to manage its cash flows and asset liability
patternsto ensure that the financial obligations are satisfied in timely manner.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.
The amounts reported are on gross and undiscounted basis.
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Inflationary risk:

Inflationary or purchasing power risk refers to the variation in investor returns caused by inflation. It is the
risk that results in increase of the prices of goods and services which results in decrease of purchasing power
of money, and likely negatively impact the value of investments. The two important sources of inflation are
rising costs of production and excess demand for goods and services in relation to their supply. Inflation and
interest rate risks are closely related as interest rates generally go up with inflation.

The Company closely monitors the inflation data and analyses the reasons for wide fluctuations thereof and
its effect on various sectors and businesses. The main objective is to avoid inflationary risk and accordingly
invest in securities and debt instruments that provides higher returns as compared to the inflation in long-
term.

Note 35-Capital management

For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, other equity
reserves and borrowed capital less cash and cash equivalents. The primary objective of capital management
is to maintain an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost of capital, support corporate expansion
strategies and to maximize shareholder's value.

The entity manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions
and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the entity may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The entity
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The entity's
policy is to keep an optimum gearing ratio. The entity includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
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Note 36

Particulars required under paragraph 31 of master directions Non-Banking Financial company - Systemically
important non deposit taking company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2023 are given in annexure appended
hereto

Note 37

The Company entered into cancellable lease arrangements for certain accommodations. Terms of such lease
include upto one month notice by either party for cancellation, option for renewal on mutually agreed terms
and there are no restrictions imposed by such lease arrangements. The Company has applied the ‘short
—term lease’ exemptions for these leases. Rental expensesincurred are disclosed in Note 25 as Rent.
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Note 38: Other statutory information:

(i) The company has not advanced or given loan or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Other than the above disclosures, the remaining other disclosures as prescribed in Amended Division Ill of
Schedule lll read with section 129 of Companies Act 2013 are either NIL or Not Applicable to the company for
the current period.

Note 39:

Figures for the previous period have been regrouped and reclassified to conform to the classification of
current period wherever necessary.

Note 40:

Statement of Balance Sheet Disclosures in terms of Master direction- Non-Banking Financial Company-
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2023.
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C) Details of financing of parent company products
The Company does not have a parent company and accordingly no disclosures required.
D) Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL)/Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC
There are no instances of exceeding the single and group borrowing limit by the Company during the current
and previous year.
E) Unsecured Advances
The Company does not have any unsecured advances for which intangible securities such as charge over
rights, license, authority, etc. has been taken.
\
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vii) Miscellaneous

A) Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

The Company has not obtained any registration from other financial sector regulators.
B) Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBl and other regulators

There have been no penaltiesimposed on the Company by RBI or other financial sector regulators during the
currentand previous financial year.

C) Related Party Transactions

Details of all material related party transactions are disclosed in Note 30.

D) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year
Notapplicable

E) Remuneration of Directors

Details relating to remuneration of directors are disclosed in Note 30. All pecuniary relationship or
transactions of the Non Executive Directors vis a vis have been disclosed in the Annual Report.

F) Management

The management discussion and analysis report for the year ended March 31, 2024 forms part of the Annual
Report.

) Sectoral Exposures (Amauntin €
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Saiion Percentage  of EI"'JIII
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H) Imbra Growp Esposures
{Amoung in T orem)
Particulars 33 March 234 31 March FIZ23
{1} Total smounk of intra greup exposures ] .
(] Tetml amaunt of 1op 20 nire greup sspogunes
(0 Percartage of Intré-group espoiures o Dobal
cipesumst  of ke company $ an  the :
Irroryers rusto mars
1) Unhedged foreign currency exposures
The Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposures for the financial year ended 31 March
2024 and 31 March 2023
J) Breach of covenant
There were no instances of breach of covenant of loan as no loan availed during the year under review. No
debt securities were issuedby the company during the year.
K) Divergence in assets classification and provisioning
RBI has not assessed or identified any additional provisioning requirement in the case of the company other
than what has been provided for. Hence not applicable.
vii) Additional Disclosures
A) Provisions and Contingencies
Braak ap of 'Providons and Contlngenches’ shews undes the hasd Exsandituss In Statement of Profit and Loss
31 taerh 2004 30 dwrch 2033
Prowlalors For depreciat kn on iree sl ma e - -
Proveigion tovenrdl NPA . -
Prowlslon neacls towards Income tax Ll 1104
Citbrsr Prowiskan and Comingenciss (nchiding smpleyss bens i) el i
Prowliion for Standard Bisets o o
B} Drawe Bowm from Reserves
Thern: havys B fio st rce s of drast down From resenies by the £ ooapoyny daring the cerrent ard previcus firgrcial
year.
C} Comcamiration of Advanees, Expanmes and NPA
[Amoant in & crons)
X1 slarch D4 11 Mwrch 2005
#] Canseniratlan of Advenos
Tortal dchre: ms o banerity bargsrt borroamrs 1553 2143
Percentage of Advanoes to twenty lanpest borrowners to Total Advances plss. 4 100%
|yt in T crem)
31 mtarch Dias 31 sdaach 2030
bl Comcentration of Exposanes
Tertsd expassns 14 Pannly langast Baorreas s Customrs 1555 241
Percantags of Bapasines 1o Desnly larget Bosmawesrs [ fuilaimen
borrowsr fostomars.
Erw Rt apasure an S00%
\

86



32nd ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

DIGVUAY FINLEASE LIMITED
CIN No. U67120WB2001PLC093899

7

ol Comcemirasios of Wfla

d} Sarior wise MPAS

Agimulivre & aFed gt
LirE
g ata ey
Servioes

imecyred penongd ooy
dyto kpm

s gl iovehl Bk

D) M yrurms of NP AR

B Mommrs gt o MPAL |Geoa )
3} Dpenng alnce

b} Acitors durmg the year

o} Bemprtmrs dureg the pase
of] £ g Bl

W) Bl et oF Bt WP AL
a| Dpening siarre
ol Achditeom dhering 1 windd
) Babmtan s g e pesd
] Chary ke ms

| Chgeeriirng Dablaros
B Prominnra prapde Dof PR T pTST

ol CHoam bk mom

Tintal paiis B B Ronl N Q22 Suhml

{Ampunt in § crons)
n 20ER

{Ampunt in % croms]

o W ol e B Rkl o il pronniciTi

i) Marrran of provhices lor P [cadsding provislom on sandend soet)

19.50 19.50

1m0 1850

E) Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)
The Company did not have any overseas assets during the current and previous year.
F) Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms)

The Company did not sponsor any SPVs during the current and previous financial year.
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Note:
i) A “Significant counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated
counterparties accounting in aggregate for more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI’s, NBFC-Ds total liabilities and
10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs.
ii) Total Liabilities has been computed as Total Assets less Equity share capital less Reserve & Surplus and
computed basis extant regulatory ALM guidelines.
(ii) Top 20 large deposits (amount in X crore and % of total deposits)
The company has not taken any deposits for the FY 23-24
(iii) Top 10 borrowings (amount in X crore and % of total borrowings)
The company has not taken any borrowings for the FY 23-24
(iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument / product
| At i crored
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Note:

(i) A "significant instrument/product” is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar
instruments/products which in aggregate amount to more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total
liabilities and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs.

(i) Total liabilities has been computed as total assets less equity share capital less reserve & surplus and
computed basis extant regulatory ALM guidelines.

(**) Figures are based on gross borrowing outstanding and does not includes accrued interest and other Ind
AS adjustments.
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(vi) Institutional set-up for Liquidity Risk Management

The Board of Directors of the Company has an overall responsibility and oversight for the management of all
the risks, including liquidity risk, to which the Company is exposed to in the course of conducting its business.
The Board approves the governance structure, policies, strategy and the risk limits for the management of
liquidity risk. The Board of Directors approves the constitution of the Risk Management Committee (RMC)
for the effective supervision, evaluation, monitoring and review of various aspects and types of risks,
including liquidity risk, faced by the Company. The meetings of RMC are held at quarterly interval. Further,
the Board of Directors also approves constitution of Asset Liability Committee (ALCO), which functions as the
strategic decision-making body for the asset-liability management of the Company from risk-return
perspective and within the risk appetite and guard-rails approved by the Board. The main objective of ALCO
is to assist the Board and RMC in effective discharge of the responsibilities of asset liability management,
market risk management, liquidity and interest rate risk management and also to ensure adherence to risk
tolerance/limits set up by the Board. ALCO provides guidance and directions in terms of interest rate,
liquidity, funding sources, and investment of surplus funds. ALCO meetings are held once in a Quarterly or
more frequently as warranted from time to time. The minutes of ALCO meetings are placed before the RMC
and the Board of Directorsin its next meeting for its perusal/ approval/ ratification.

(vii) Liquidity Coverage Ratio

Disclosures relating to liquidity coverage ratio are given in annexure appended hereto.
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Annexure to Note 36

Smount  Amount
outitumdling  opwetlug

[as required in terms of paragraph 31 of Master Direction Reserve Bank of India
(Non-Banking Financial Company-Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023]
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Ansety side

counting towards ARC sctbvities
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{51 Break-up of investments:
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{1} Shares: {a) Equity

W} Preference
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{1l Units of mutual funds
{iv| Govarnment sacuritias
[vi Dihers
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MM 3.0

Amount Amownt
Loag Tarrm Invastm snts: oumtanding  ownmaanding
1. * Chsotwd:
Al Shanes (3] Equity 51871 436,41
{b] Prefarsnce - -
{ilf Debantures and bonds - -

{1} Linits of srotas| funds = *
{hv} Bavernment securitias ’ .
{v} Others {pleasa spmcsfy] - :

2. "Unguoted:

{i} Shares: ja) Equiky 6110 B4R
(] Preference 6.06 BIR

{ii} Drsbentures ard bonis - -

{iii} Lanitts of mumaal funds .

v Gowernment seourities - -

{v} Others [Flaase specifiy) = =

594,07 SIE.00
*Corsidered at originad cost

[1E] Borrasiasr group-ai chsalfestion of ol baied st Wock an bl s e S abvaincss Hrelding oihes Curme o)
Please wra Mote 2 below
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(7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term)

in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted): s i k)
00 BB 03l
Marst Value Mlarued Valus
Jrmak upfor -;H:. Mo e Pl ook Vakis
b— e - w0 Previmai]
NAYV NAY
1 Eelated Farie™
i3y Sokcidianas . F i M
it Compariss n the e gosp® 3 =
i) Oriter related partes - - . -
¥ Orhar thes releisd pariies 11A71.7 e o) 1 FEFLEL] Smol
Total e sy 121108 S0l

= g e Lefeamling Sandasds of ICU Masia jas Nobs 3]

* “Companiesin the Same Group” has been considered based on the definition provided in Explanation—Ito
section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 read with Sections 372/370 of the Companies Act 1956
(hereinafter referred to as the “RBI Act”).

(B} Dtharlnformation 3103200 31092023

[1} Gross nan-perfarming assets
{=) Related parties h i
{b) Crtheer than related parties 12.50 1958

[ Met non-performing assets
(8] Related partiss - -
1) Othar than related partias “ .

(i) Assets scquined in aatisfaction af delt - -

Notes:
1. Asdefined in paragraph 5.1.26 of the Directions.

2. Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in these Directions.

3. All notified Accounting Standards and guidance notesissued by ICAl are applicable including for valuation
of investments and other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, market value in
respect of unquoted investments shall be disclosed irrespective of whether they are classified as long term (
amortised costin the case of Ind AS) or current(fair value in the case of Ind AS) in (5) above.
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Annexure to Note 42 (vii)

Liquidity Coverage Ratio

The Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) is a key compliance requirement for a resilient and stable financial sector.
Its objective is the promotion of short-term resilience of the liquidity risk profile of financial institutions by
ensuring that it has sufficient High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) to survive a significant stress scenario lasting
for one month. The Liquidity Coverage Ratio is expected to improve the financial sector’s ability to absorb
shocks arising from financial and economic stress, whatever the source, thus reducing the risk of spill over
from the financial sector to the real economy.Liquidity Management of the company is supervised by the
Asset Liability Committee. The management is of the view that the company has in place robust processes to
monitor and manage liquidity risks and sufficient liquidity cover to meet its likely future short-term
requirements.The company has a diversified mix of borrowings with respect to the source, type of
instrument, tenor and nature of security. The Asset Liability Committee constantly reviews and monitors the
funding mix and ensures the optimum mix of funds based on the cash flow requirements, market conditions
and keeping the interest rate view in consideration. Additionally, the Company has lines of credit that it can
access to meet liquidity needs.These are reviewed by the Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) on a monthly
basis. The Asset Liability Committee provides strategic direction andguidance on liquidity risk management.
A sub-committee of the Asset Liability Committee, comprising members from the Treasury and Risk
functions, monitor liquidity risks on a weekly basis and decisions are taken on the funding plan and levels of
investible surplus, from the Asset Liability Management perspective. This sets the boundaries for daily cash
flow management.In line with RBI regulations, the cash outflows and inflows have been stressed by 115%
and 75% of their respective original values for computing LCR. The key drivers on the inflow side are the
expected collections from the performing assets of the company and on the outflow side the scheduled
maturities. The High Quality Liquid Assets are entirely held in Government Securities which are classified as

Level 1 assets with no haircut.
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If undelivered, Please return to :
Digvijay Finlease Limited

21, Strand Road
Kolkata - 700 001




